
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA       
NOVEMBER 13, 2017 - 7:00 P.M.  

WINTERVILLE TOWN HALL ASSEMBLY ROOM 
I. CALL TO ORDER.

II. INVOCATION.

III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE.

IV. WELCOME.

V. APPROVAL OF AGENDA.

VI. RECOGNITION OF NEW EMPLOYEES:

1. Bryan Jones, Planning Director.

VII. PUBLIC HEARINGS:

1. Davis Property (Parcel #24023, #25886 and #25940) Rezoning.
2. Summer Winds (Parcel #73274) Rezoning.
3. Changes to the Agricultural Residential Zoning District Section of the Zoning Ordinance.

VIII. PUBLIC COMMENT: The Public Comment period of thirty minutes provides an opportunity for
residents to comment on any item included in the agenda or to address the Town Council on any other
matter related to the Town of Winterville. For an item included in the Public Hearing section of the
agenda, residents should address the Council at the time the Mayor invites public comment on the
item. No public comment may be made to the Council during the meeting, except during the Public
Comment period or as part of a Public Hearing. Individual speakers are limited to a maximum of three
minutes, and no more than three speakers may address the Council on a single matter. The Town
Council may elect to take no action on the matter addressed by a speaker, may schedule the matter for
further consideration at a future Council meeting, or may refer the matter to Town staff for disposition.
Copies of the Town Public Comment Policy are available in the rear of the Assembly Room.

IX. CONSENT AGENDA:  The following items are considered routine in nature and will not be discussed
by the Town Council unless a Councilman or citizen requests that an item be removed from the
Consent Agenda for further discussion.  The Mayor may allow citizens to address an item or ask
questions.

1. Regular Meeting Minutes - June 12, 2017.
2. Regular Meeting Minutes – July 10, 2017.
3. Receive Petition Requesting Annexation of the Ange Plaza Lot 2 and adopt a Resolution

directing the Acting Town Clerk to Investigate the Sufficiency of the Petition.
4. Receive Petition Requesting Annexation of Ange Plaza Lot 23 & 26 and adopt a Resolution

directing the Acting Town Clerk to Investigate the Sufficiency of the Petition.
5. Approval of Resolution for Financing (Recreation Truck, Recreation Van and Electric Line

Truck) with First Citizens Bank and Trust.
6. Winterville Machine Works Recombination.
7. Budget Amendment.



 
 
 
 
   

X. NEW BUSINESS: 
1. Resolution Accepting SRF Loan Increase for New Regional Pump Station. 
2. Interlocal Contract for Cooperative Purchasing of Fire Truck with HGACBuy. 

XI. OTHER AGENDA ITEMS. 

XII. ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDAS/FUTURE WORK SESSIONS. 

XIII. REPORTS FROM DEPARTMENT HEADS: 

Update on Projects Currently Underway:  Grant Award for FS Greenway Project 
        MPO Active Transportation Plan  
        Regional Sewer Pump Station Project 
        Nobel Canal Drainage Basin Study 
        Water Tank Rehabilitation Project 
        NTE Plant Construction Project 
        Minimum Housing/Code Enforcement 
        Junk Car Enforcement Project 
        Urgent Repair Program 
         

XIV. REPORTS FROM THE TOWN ATTORNEY, MAYOR AND TOWN COUNCIL, AND TOWN 
MANAGER. 

XV. CLOSED SESSION: NCGS § 143-318.11. (a)(3) To consult with an attorney employed or retained by 
the public body in order to preserve the attorney-client privilege between the attorney and the public 
body, which privilege is hereby acknowledged. General policy matters may not be discussed in a 
closed session and nothing herein shall be construed to permit a public body to close a meeting that 
otherwise would be open merely because an attorney employed or retained by the public body is a 
participant. The public body may consider and give instructions to an attorney concerning the handling 
or settlement of a claim, judicial action, mediation, arbitration, or administrative procedure. (Update on 
Step Lawsuit). 
 

XVII.  ANNOUNCEMENTS: 
 

1. Planning and Zoning Board Meeting – November 20, 2017 – 7 pm – Town Hall Assembly Room. 
2. Board of Adjustment Meeting – November 21, 2017 – 7 pm – Town Hall Assembly Room. 
3. Christmas Tree Lighting & Council Reception – November 30, 2017 – 6pm – In Between Public  
    Safety & Town Hall Buildings. 
4. Employee’s Christmas Luncheon – December 1, 2017 – 12 pm – Community Room. 
5. Christmas Parade – December 9, 2017 – 2 pm. 
 

XVIII.      ADJOURN. 
 

SPECIAL NOTICE: Anyone who needs an interpreter or special accommodations to participate in 
the meeting should notify the Acting Town Clerk, Amy Barrow at 215-2342 at least forty-eight (48) 
hours prior to the meeting. (Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) 1991.) 

2



 
 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract  
 

Meeting Date: November 13, 2017 
Presenter: Stephen, Economic Development 
Planner 

 

Item Section:  Public Hearings 

Item to be Considered 
Subject: Davis Property (Parcel #24023, #25886, and #25940) Rezoning. 

Action Requested: Hold Public Hearing and Consider Rezoning Proposal.   

Attachments: Rezoning Map, Subdivision Map, Rezoning Application & Conditional Use District Application.  

Prepared By: Stephen Penn, Economic Development Planner Date: 10/26/2017 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 
 TC         FD        TM  tlp – 11/6/2017  Final  tlp – 11/6/2017 

Supporting Documentation 
Location: Parcels are located between Worthington Road and Laurie Ellis Road.  Currently (and showing on 
OPIS) as Parcel #24023, located off of Worthington Road; Parcel #25886, located roughly 650’ off of 
Worthington road and between Worthington Road and Laurie Ellis Road & Parcel #25940, located off of 
Worthington Road.  As shown, the property was subdivided to allow for two different zoning districts.  The 
subdivision exists but may not yet show up.   

Size: 110.17 Acres Total.     Current Zoning: Agricultural-Residential (AR).   

Proposed Zoning: 

• R-10 is proposed on the 57.7933 acres adjacent to Worthington Road. 
• R-8 Conditional Use District (CUD) is proposed on the 52.3804 acres adjacent to Laurie Ellis Road. 

Conditions:  

o 8’ Side setbacks within the R-8CUD Zoning. (instead of 10’ side setbacks in a general R-8 Zone.) 

o Brick Foundations on all Homes. 

o All Homes Will be a minimum of 1,500 SF (Heated). 

o The Development Will consist of either brick, stone, vinyl shake, vinyl board & batten or fiber 
cement board accents on all homes.  

* Future Land Use Plan- Proposes Low Density Residential in this area.  The adjacent lots are zoned 
Agricultural- Residential (AR) within Winterville and Rural Residential (RR) in Pitt County.  

* P&Z recommended denial of the Davis Property Rezoning at their September Meeting. (6 to 1.) 

Budgetary Impact:  TBD. 

Recommendation: Consider Rezoning Proposal.  

 

3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



Worthington Property Proposal

14



An Extraordinarily Destinctive Winterville Neighborhood!

We plan to create a neighborhood that will showcase what we, here at Bill Clark Homes, can provide and
one that will also exceed all expectations of prospective Winterville area residents.

This unique neighborhood will offer not only a superb home for the homeowner but a neighborhood they
can be pround to call home

Although, the design for the neighborhood amenities is not 100% complete, the plan does include a very large and well designed pool
for the homeowner’s private enjoyment.  Local examples of our communities with pools would be Paramore, Langston Farms and Tyson
Farms.

In order to appeal to a larger portion of the population; the homes will vary in both size and price range, however; the quality of the
homes will remain constant throughout the neighborhood.

The exterior of the homes will feature architectural shingles and brick foundations.  For added interest of design, there will be a 
combination of accents that will vary from home to home of stone, brick, board and batten siding and vinyl shake and vinyl siding.

We intend to create a neighborhood within a neighborhood with the perfect home for the single professional, the retiree and the growing
family.  

The homes featured in the presentation are examples of what we plan to build and range in size from around 1600 square feet to over
3400 square feet of heated living space.

All homes shall have a double car garage which always helps to keep the streets and driveways clear of parked vehicles.

There will be protective covenants that will help ensure that the neighborhood will remain viable and attractive long into the future.

Winterville has proven for years to be a location that is desirable and we believe there is a strong need for the type of neighborhood we
plan to offer.

15



Preliminary Rendering
May change depending on final
survey information that is taking

place at this time.

80 foot wide lots

70 foot wide lots

Amenity Center

80 foot wide lots
(125 total)

70 foot wide lots
(105 total)

16



Example of one of the Amenities we have built this year. Each pool and building will differ according to each community.17



Example of one of the Amenities we have built this year. Each pool and building will differ according to each community.18



80 foot lots with 10 foot side setbacks.  Greystone, 3,221  heated Sq.ft. 19



80 foot lots with 10 foot side setbacks.  Haddock, 2,570  heated Sq.ft. 20



An example of the interior of a Bill Clark Home 21



80 foot lots with 10 foot side setbacks.  Albemarle, 3,148  heated Sq.ft. 22



70 foot lot with 8 foot side setbacks.  Hardy V, 2,152  heated Sq.ft. 23



70 foot lot with 8 foot side setbacks.  Hillerest, 2,080  heated Sq.ft.  2,332 with optional bedroom 24



An example of the interior of a Bill Clark Home 25



70 foot lot with 8 foot side setbacks.  Isaac, 1,586  heated Sq.ft.  1,895 sq.ft. with bonus room 26



 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract  
 

Meeting Date: November 13, 2017 
Presenter: Stephen, Economic Development 
Planner 

 

Item Section:  Public Hearings 

Item to be Considered 
Subject: Summer Winds (Parcel #73274) Rezoning. 

Action Requested: Hold Public Hearing and Consider Rezoning Proposal.   

Attachments: Rezoning Map and Rezoning Application.  

Prepared By: Stephen Penn, Economic Development Planner Date: 10/26/2017 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 
 TC         FD        TM  tlp – 11/6/2017  Final  tlp – 11/6/2017 

Supporting Documentation 
Summer Winds Rezoning: Bill Clark Homes of Greenville LLC. 

Location: Parcel # 73274. Summer Winds is an existing subdivision located off of Reedy Branch Road. The 
proposed lot to be rezoned is to be located on Crimson Drive as shown in the attached map.  

Size: Roughly half of the proposed, 15,215 square foot proposed lot- details shown on attached map. 

Current Zoning: The area in which this lot is proposed is zoned R- 12.5 Conditional Use District (CUD) and R-
15.  The R-12.5 CUD’s conditions are that the minimum side setback requirements are 10’ rather than 12.5’ as it 
would be required in that zoning district.  

Proposed Zoning: R-15.  This rezoning will prevent the lot from having two different zoning classifications/split 
zoning.  This will allow for a final plat to be approved in the future and for the lot to be a buildable lot in the 
future. 

*Future Land Use Plan- Proposes “Medium Density Residential” (R-10 or R 12.5) in this district. This Rezoning 
is proposing R-15 which is considered a Low Density Residential.  Adjacent existing zones entail R-15, R-12.5 
and R-12.5 CUD. 

* The adjacent lot to the east is zoned R-15. The adjacent lot to the west is zoned R-12.5.  The adjacent lots to 
the north, in copper creek are zoned R-12.5 

* P&Z Recommended approval of the rezoning at their September Meeting.  

Budgetary Impact:  TBD. 

Recommendation:  Consider Rezoning Proposal.   

 

27



28



29



30



31



32



 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract  
 

Meeting Date: November 13, 2017 
Presenter: Stephen, Economic Development 
Planner 

 

Item Section:  Public Hearings 

Item to be Considered 
Subject: Permitted & Conditional Use Workshop Changes to Agricultural-Residential (A-R) District. 

Action Requested: Hold Public Hearing and Give Staff Direction on Proposed Changes if Applicable. 

Attachments: A-R Compiled Motions During Workshop; Draft of Updated Permitted Use Table. The Ordinance 
Approving Said Changes will be Handed out at the Meeting. 

Prepared By: Stephen Penn, Economic Development Planner Date: 10/26/2017 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 
 TC         FD        TM  tlp – 11/8/2017  Final  tlp – 11/8/2017 

Supporting Documentation 
The Winterville Planning and Zoning Board (P&Z) met with the Winterville Town Council to discuss changes to 
the A-R district.  P&Z passed several motions as a recommendation for council to change selected A-R Permitted 
and Conditional Uses.  The list below gives a quick overview of the changes.  The attached document supplies a 
more detailed description.  P&Z gave final overview of the list below at their April meeting and passed a motion 
as a recommendation to council.  

Permitted Use Changes: 

1. It is recommended that the “Class A Single Family” permitted use be removed as a permitted use within 
the A-R district. 

2. It is recommended that the “Class B Single Family” permitted use be removed within the A-R district.  
3. It is recommended that the “Shooting Ranges, Outdoor, Local Government Only”  permitted use be 

removed within the A-R district.  
4. It is recommended that the “Landscaping Services, Farm Supplies and Stables”  permitted uses be 

removed within the A-R district- these uses are part of the “Farm Related Enterprises” category of uses.  

Conditional Use Changes: 

5. It is recommended that the “Class A Single Family” use to be  added as a conditional use within the A-R 
district.  Special Requirement 3 will still apply.  

6. It is recommended that the “Refrigerator or Large Appliance Repairs” conditional use be removed as a 
use within the A-R district.  

Budgetary Impact:  TBD. 

 

33



Planning & Zoning and Town Council Workshop  

February 21, 2017 @ 6:30. 

The Winterville Town Council met with the Winterville Planning and Zoning Board (P&Z) on 
February 21, 2017 to discuss the Agricultural-Residential (AR) Zoning Districts Permitted and 
Conditional Uses.  The following six (6) items were voted upon and were passed by the 
Planning and Zoning Board after discussion with the Winterville Town Council- these items 
serve as a recommendation for adoption by Town Council.  The compiled list, below, along with 
any special requirements was presented to the Planning and Zoning for final approval at their 
April 17, 2017 Planning and Zoning Meeting.  The Following received final approval from the 
P&Z Board for recommendation to council.  

 

Permitted Use Changes: (4 Changes) 

1. It is recommended that the “Class A Single Family” permitted use be removed as a 
permitted use within the A-R district. 

2. It is recommended that the “Class B Single Family” permitted use be removed within the 
A-R district.  

3. It is recommended that the “Shooting Ranges, Outdoor, Local Government Only”  
permitted use be removed within the A-R district.  

4. It is recommended that the “Landscaping Services, Farm Supplies and Stables”  
permitted uses be removed within the A-R district- these uses are part of the “Farm 
Related Enterprises” category of uses.  

 

 
Conditional Use Changes: (2 Changes) 

5. It is recommended that the “Class A Single Family” use to be  added as a conditional 
use within the A-R district.  Special Requirement 3 will still apply.  

Special Requirement 3: (This Special Requirement Already Exist Within our Zoning Ordinance.)  

SR 3. Class A Mobile Home on Individual Lot: 
a. The mobile home shall have a length not exceeding four times its width. 

 
b. The mobile home shall be at least 20 feet side. 

 
c. The pitch of the mobile home’s roof shall have a minimum vertical rise of two and 

two tenths feet for each twelve feet of horizontal run (2.2’ in 12’) and the roof 
shall be finished with a type of shingle that is commonly used in standard 
residential construction. 
 

d. The exterior siding shall consist predominantly of vinyl or aluminum horizontal lap 
siding (that does not exceed the reflectivity of gloss white paint), wood, or 
hardboard, comparable in composition, appearance, and durability to the exterior 
siding commonly used in standard residential construction.  

34



 
e. A continuous, permanent masonry foundation, unpierced except for required 

ventilation and access, shall be installed under the mobile home.  
 

f. The tongue, axles, transporting lights, and removable towing apparatus are 
removed subsequent to final placement. 

 
g. The mobile home shall be placed on land owned by the owner of the mobile 

home. The 
mobile home shall be listed and taxed as real property. 

 
h. The mobile home shall be oriented so that the longest measurement shall be no 

more than twenty (20) degrees from parallel to the front property line, except on 
corner lots. The front of the mobile home shall face the front property line. The 
front of the mobile home is that side which has an entrance door leading to a 
living room, foyer, or hall and is the longer dimension of the mobile home’s sides. 

 
 

6. It is recommended that the “Refrigerator or Large Appliance Repairs” conditional use be 
removed as a use within the A-R district.  

 

 

Definitions: These already exist within our Zoning Ordinance 

Mobile Home. A dwelling unit that (i) is not constructed in accordance with the 
standards set 
forth in the North Carolina State Building Code, and (ii) is composed of one or more 
components, each of which was substantially assembled in a manufacturing plant and 
designed 
to be transported to the home site on its own chassis, and (iii) exceeds forty (40) feet in 
length 
and eight (8) feet in width. 
 
Mobile home, class “A”. A multi-sectional mobile home constructed after July 1, 1976, 
that 
meets or exceeds the construction standards promulgated by the US Department of 
Housing and 
Urban Development that were in effect at the time of construction and that satisfies the 
additional criteria for Class “A” mobile homes contained in Article IX. 
 
Mobile home, class “B”. A mobile home constructed after July 1, 1976 that meets or 
exceeds the 
construction standards promulgated by the US Department of Housing and Urban 
Development 
that were in effect as the time of construction. 

35



 
Mobile Home, class “C”. A mobile home which does not meet the Class “A” or Class 
“B” 
definitions. 
 
Mobile home park. A lot(s) or tract(s) of land used or intended to be used, leased or 
rented for 
occupancy by mobile homes in conformity with the mobile home park provision of this 
Ordinance. 
 
Mobile home park, non-conforming. A lot(s) or tract(s) of land used or intended to be 
used, 
leased or rented for occupancy by two (2) or more mobile homes sharing common 
ownership 
and/or facilities and which do not qualify as individual mobile homes on individual lots 
and 
which park is not in conformance with all the requirements for the initial establishment 
for a 
mobile home park as defined above. 

36



Existing:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Proposed:  

USE TYPES LUC SIC 
A-
R 

R-
20 

R-
15 

R-
12.5 

R-
10 

R-
8 

R-
6 

M-
R 

O-
I 

C-
B 

G-
B 

I-
C 

C-
N I SR 

Residential Uses                                   
dwelling, mobile home on individual 

lot: 1                                 
    class A single-family   0000 X           X               3 
    class B single- family   0000 X                           4 

shooting ranges, outdoor, local 
government only 4 7999 X                         X   

farm related enterprises such as 
vegetable stands, fishing ponds, 

horticulture, landscaping services, 
farm supplies, stables 3 0000 X                             

refrigerator or large appliance repairs 4 7623 C                   X     X 41 

USE TYPES LUC SIC 
A-
R 

R-
20 

R-
15 

R-
12.5 

R-
10 

R-
8 

R-
6 

M-
R 

O-
I 

C-
B 

G-
B 

I-
C 

C-
N I SR  

Residential Uses                                    
dwelling, mobile home 

on individual lot: 1                                   
    class A single-family   0000 C           X               3   

    class B single- family   0000                             4 
(will be removed, 
completely) 

shooting ranges, 
outdoor, local 

government only 4 7999                           X     
farm related enterprises 

such as vegetable 
stands, fishing ponds, 

horticulture. 3 0000 X                               
refrigerator or large 
appliance repairs 4 7623                     X     X 41   

37



 

 
 
 
 
 

Winterville Town Council 
June 12, 2017  

Regular Meeting Minutes 
 

The Winterville Town Council met in a Regular Meeting on the above date at 7:00 PM in the Town Hall 
Assembly Room, with Mayor Douglas A. Jackson presiding.  The meeting was called to order, followed 
by the Invocation by Councilwoman Roberson, which was followed by the Pledge of Allegiance. The 
following were present: 

Mayor Douglas A. Jackson 
Mayor Pro-Tem Mark Smith 

Councilwoman Veronica Roberson 
Councilman Tony Moore 

Councilman Johnny Moye 
Keen Lassiter, Town Attorney 
Terri L. Parker, Town Manager 

Ben Williams, Assistant Town Manager 
Ryan Willhite, Police Chief 

Travis Welborn, Public Works Director 
Robert Sutton, Electric Director 

Evan Johnston, Parks & Recreation Director 
Anthony Bowers, Finance Director 

David Moore, Fire Chief 
Stephen Penn, Economic Development Planner 

Amy P. Barrow, Acting Town Clerk 
 

WELCOME:  Mayor Jackson welcomed the public.  
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: Mayor Jackson requested approval of the agenda.   
 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Councilwoman Roberson to approve the 
agenda as presented. Motion carried unanimously.  
 
INTRODUCTION OF NEW EMPLOYEE:  Electric Director Sutton introduced our newest 2nd Class 
Electric Line Technician Chris Turnage.  
 
PRESENTATIONS: Nobel Canal Drainage Basin Study – SEPI Engineering.   
 
Assistant Manager Williams introduced SEPI Engineering Consultant David Webb.   David Webb 
presented the following power point presentation to the Council concerning the Nobel Canal Drainage 
Basin Study conducted by SEPI Engineering.  
 

38



 

 

2 
 

 

 
Pipe failures on Railroad Street with several sinkholes and the ifrastructure is old, a lot of pipes placed 
on reverse grade, Nobel Canal has several erosion concerns. 

39



 

 

3 
 

 

 

 

40



 

 

4 
 

 

 

 

41



 

 

5 
 

 

 

 

42



 

 

6 
 

Assisted with writing a Water Resources Development Grant that was submitted back in December; 
however, the grant was denied.  One of the things that Water Resources and Clean Water 
Management Trust Fund are looking for a low impact development or a green solution, not as 
interested in alleviating flooding. Water quality is something the Town needs to consider to assist with 
getting more grant funding.  The crossing at Mill Street is a Department of Transportation (DOT) road, if 
the Town were going to upgrade the existing pipe the Town could possibly enter into a municipal 
agreement with the DOT.  A partnership would help with cost sharing on the project.  Option to allocate 
general funds to improve drainage within the Town; however, the Town has a stormwater utility that 
needs to sustain on it’s own.  Stormwater Bonds would be another option.   

 

 

 
 
 
Councilwoman Roberson questioned whether the Town has applications on file with the Clean Water 
Trust Fund.  Assistant Manager Williams explained that the Town submitted an application to the 
Division of Water Resources for a project totalling $1.8 million with the Town putting in $1.2 million and 
requested $600,000.  Due to the lack of green components in the project, the funding was denied. 

43



 

 

7 
 

Town staff will be meeting to discuss ways to modify the project to incorporate some more appealing 
ideas from a funding source perspective.  Staff met with Clean Water Management Trust Fund during 
the study process, more interested in a quality side of things such as, acquistion of raparian buffer 
areas, innovative Best Management Practices (BMP) installations,  retro-fits, etc.  Staff is trying to 
figure out how to get a few of those components in the well built out upper reaches of the drainage to 
make the project more appealing.  Staff received an email today concerning the Chapman Street 
colvert replacement project.  Due to a collabrative staff effort as a result of the Hurricane Matthew 
funding.  Staff saw the Chapman Street Colvert Replacement Project and knew there were problems, 
the project qualified and submitted for funding.  Notice was given this morning the Town will receive a 
little under $1.1 million dollars to replace the undersized colvert.  Manager Parker informed Council that 
the press release is in their packet with a star beside Winterville’s funding at the bottom of the page.  
Collabrative effort amongst staff; however, Finance Director Bowers looked into the program and put 
the grant together with information from other staff members.   
 
Councilman Moore mentioned the amount of $1,094,000.  Assistant Manager Williams explained that 
the $1,094,000 is the funding to replace the colvert and the additional $270,000 is for sewer pump 
station work that needs to be completed on the Church Street Pump Station.  Councilwoman Roberson 
questioned whether the culvert is part of the project from the stormwater study.  Assistant Manager 
Williams stated Councilwoman Roberson to be correct with the culvert receiving the funding is part of 
the SEPI Drainage Study, possibly item number five (5) in the study.  Typically in drainage you want to 
work down and then up.  If repairs are done to a bottleneck upstream the water is just sent 
downstream.  Originally staff wanted to complete the Railroad Street infrastructure issue in the 
bottleneck under the railroad because from an infrastructure stand point that area had the highest 
priority.  The Railroad Street area infrastructure is old and failing loosing dirt along with curb and gutter.   
Staff knew the area needed to be replaced and were looking for some financial assistance to make 
repairs.  
 
Councilman Moye wanted to verify the area in which Assistant Manger Williams was speaking about 
being over by Chapman Street.  Assistant Manager Williams reiterated that the portion of the project 
where Chapman Street to American Trucking to the Chapman Street Pump Station the culvert begins 
______ and ends ________ and the Town will be replacing the entire colvert getting rid of corgeated 
metal pipes and putting in concrete box culverts.  Aleviate one of the bottlenecks that allows the water 
to backup in the canal, under Mill Street and culvert under the Railroad tracks.   
 
Councilman Moye questioned the project covering the repiars behind Good Hope Church that has been 
talked about for twenty (20) years or so.  Assistant Manager Williams explained that the application 
would not cover the piping or anything along the Good Hope Church area.  May be some stablization at 
the beginng and the end of the project with some riprap depending on how the project prices come in, 
there may be opprotunity to utilize some of the Mitigation money or the chip in some money from a 
Town fund to do some of the red recommendations for bank stabilization from the areas experiencing 
erosion from high volocity.  Councilman Moye asked if the stabilization would be taken out to Mill 
Street.  Assistant Manager Williams noted that if the money worked out for the project may be able to 
get the stabilization all the way to Mill Street under one contract.   
 
Councilwoman Roberson wanted to verify that the stabilization would be done by using riprap (large 
rocks).  Assistant Manager Williams reiterated that riprap was correct; however, there are many ways to 
handle stabilization.  Mr. Webb spoke concerning some of the area would use the riprap while others 
would utilize different soil with a permanent matting look a little more natural, try to make is slope back 
and safer to make the channel handle more capacity.   
 

44



 

 

8 
 

Councilwoman Roberson wanted to know what lift station would be part of the project.  Assistant 
Manager Williams explained that the Church Street Lift Station down past the OPS Center.  Manager 
Parker reminded Council of the flood damage and panel damage incurred at the lift station during 
hurricane Matthew.  Assistant Manager went on to state the pump burnout, the well needs to be 
elevated, force main break a couple of times over the years with staff having replaced 2/3 of the 
forcemain and Council is appropriating money to finish that project.   
 
Councilwoman Roberson spoke about areas that received grants from the Legislature a year or so 
ago, and the Legislature funding anyone that had an application on file.  Curious as to whether the 
Town had an application on file for grant funding.  Assistant Manager Williams explained that 
depending on how the meeting would go the following day may determine how the Town proceeds.  
Processes like the study being discussed may sit on the shelf for a while; however, when funding 
becomes available the Town would be ready to submit the project for funding.  If the Town does not 
have a study prepared when the money is available, the Town would not receive the funding at that 
time.  When staff has the meeting with Amin Davis at the Division of Water Resources staff will then 
know what changes need to be made such as modifying the project, adding money to the project, etc.  
Councilwoman Roberson reiterated that the project would open up areas for part of this project 
replacing smaller pipe and put in larger pipe, so staff will have to open those areas back up and put the 
larger pipes. Assistant Manager Williams stated specifically on Railroad Street there would be a 
temporary inconvenience.  Councilman Moye said that is good news for property owners and the ones 
that have been waiting many years to have something done in the area.  Assistant Manager Williams 
reiterated that to be once piece of a large puzzle.  Remember that is five (5) projects and $6 million in 
one (1) basin and there are six (6) to eight (8), three hundred (300)+ acres of drainage area.  
Councilman Moore explained that when the pipe was changed under the railroad tracks a few years 
ago the price was $112,000, which has gone up ten (10) times that amount in the last fifteen (15) years.  
Took out one pipe and replaced it using all the Powell Bill money that year.  Assistant Manager 
Williams partnerships between entities and funding agencies to make all the projects work.  
Councilman Moye questioned whether the Town would have to put any up front money on towards the 
awarding of the funding.  Assistant Manager Williams expecting to receive the contract information in a 
couple of weeks; however, as far as the Chapman Street project I believe not.  Some of the other 
funding programs, the one that the Town was denied funding (funding for Nobel Canal along Railroad 
Street by Division of Water Resources), require a 50/50 match.  The Town to show some muscle, put 
up $1.2 million and were only asking for $600,000 from the Division of Water Resources that denied 
funding, ratio was 66 2/3rd for the grant funding.  Public Works Director Welborn reiterated that this was 
the study portion of the project and lucky enough to get the grant funding to cover one (1) section of the 
study, which is Chapman Street colvert.  Staff is still working on trying to get additional funding to pay 
for the other four (4) to five (5) sections of the study.  Will be years down the road before the additional 
sections are done, unless staff is able to obtain other funding solutions. Councilwoman Roberson 
stated that is a beginning and once that project is complete maybe get some buffers on the other 
section.  During heavy rains people have to put their cars in the yard since the yard is higher than the 
road.  Public Works Director Welborn stated there are several drainage basins, most have issues some 
are minor while some are major.  Six (6) different basins will be a lot of expense.  Manager Parker 
reminded Council that the funding is great, however, that the funding came about as a result of a storm 
event.  Public Works Director Welborn explained that would not be recurring funding source.   

45



 

 

9 
   

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

  

 
 

 

 

 
 

  

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 
46



 

 

10 
 

 
For Immediate Release: June 7, 2017 

For More Information, Contact: David Rhoades / (919) 814-4611 
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING: Copper Creek Phase II Annexation.  Economic Planner Penn provided maps for 
the second section for the Copper Creek Subdivision located on Reedy Branch Road.  Town Staff 
received a request for annexation of section two (2), which is 18.09 acres and zoned R-12.5.  The 
annexation will increase the tax base.   
 
Councilwoman Roberson questioned drainage problems behind Little Gem Circle right next to the 
Copper Creek Subdivision, did staff get that area resolved.  Assistant Manager Williams explained the 
individual that Councilwoman Roberson and Williams met to discuss the drainage issues has not called 
with any complaints.  Staff has monitored the stabilization with the rocks and things are continuing to 
hold even through the tropical storms and hurricanes.  Councilwoman Roberson wanted to know if 
there is a way for Staff to keep the same issue from happening again, when the subdivision was 
developed the drainage came from right to left and then down.  Assistant Manager Williams stated 
there are calculations that occur during development that are reviewed by Staff and our Consultant.  
Also soil types down there are the sandy type that don’t hold as well as clay, soil just washed on out.   
Area is in a flood plan and is not as compact and durable as clay that has been compressed over time.  
Councilwoman Roberson saw the big pipes the developer put down when the new subdivision started, 
which changed the drainage pattern in the area quite a bit.  Having more water come out together to go 
through a small ditch.  Assistant Manager Williams stated everything that happened previously is being 
taken into consideration and reviewed for this Phase.   
 
Mayor Jackson declared the public hearing is now open; would anyone like to speak in favor; would 
anyone like to speak in opposition.  Hearing none close the public hearing, what is the Board’s 
pleasure.  
 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Mayor Pro-Tem Smith to approve Copper 
Creek Phase II Annexation.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Manager Parker stated the annexation would take place July 1, 2017.   

 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Mayor Jackson read the Public Comment Policy. 
 

1. Calvin Henderson – Chapter 96: NOISE Winterville Code of Ordinance.   
 
Mr. Henderson thanked the Council for allowing him to have a few minutes.  The reason for being here 
tonight, my wife and I work with the senior program in Winterville and have been for quite some time.  
Head a non-profit in the Community that any citizen is invited to come out meet every first Friday at 
Reverend Turnage Church or sometimes at the Library.  Tonight here because of phone calls after 
phone calls deal with Noise Ordinance Chapter 96 in Winterville Code of Ordinance.  Before Council 
tonight many of the citizens are seniors and Jones Street, Railroad Street, Evergreen Drive and most 
streets in the North area of Winterville are used quite a bit a heavily trafficked area.  Police Department 
are probably doing the best they can; however, we have a problem.  Continue to get calls at night and 
even during the day, since there is a school zone, Nursing Home with different ailments and have to be 
watched very closely.  Including children playing in the street, since there is a playground right there.  
There are two (2) problems: one (1) is speed and two (2) is the noise.  Some Council members are 
familiar with the noise, sometimes no matter where you live it can rattles the walls.  Hear tonight to say 

47



 

 

11 
 

to the Council that the citizens would really appreciate if the Council would put some serious attention, 
sure the Police Department is doing all they can; however, feel a little more can be done.  Know the 
Police cannot be everywhere at onetime, receive calls from seniors asking if there is a Police 
Department.  Citizens need help and the problem is just getting worse.  I work with the Pitt County 
Gang Task Force and Citizens United against Violence for quite some time and these groups work in 
the area with these loud boom boxes and people that have no respect for anyone. That behavior ties 
into gang activity.  With Winterville now growing fast being close knitted with Greenville out of one into 
the other.  Citizens thought the gangs are just in Greenville, there in the small communities like 
Winterville and Ayden with the criminal activity.  Hope and pray we can see some changes on our 
streets and more officers added to help protect the issues before Council.  Public safety should be a 
number one (1) concern and the presence of our Police Officers early is very important.  If this is not 
addressed and aloud to get out of hand the results could be devastating.  Being proactive is better than 
having to be reactive.  Ask our Police Chief to give citizens some help in that area of Town.  The speed 
bumps no longer serve a purpose, as the culprits have found ways around the speed bumps.  People 
are deliberately increasing speed in between the speed bumps and reaching speeds of 50mph.  Spoke 
with the Police Chief, which asked if the citizens could possibly get license plate numbers on the 
individuals in questions.  A few seniors have gotten plate numbers; however, are a little hesitant to get 
involved due to fear of retaliation.  Pleading for the Council’s help for the citizens. 
 
Councilman Moore informed Mr. Henderson that Police Chief Willhite did recommend to the Council 
during budget hearings that Council add additional Police Officers.  Staff also needs additional Fireman 
for twenty-four (24) hour service, across the board need additional staff.  Council did not do personnel 
just capital improvements during this year’s budget.  Winterville has gone from the 4th Safest Town, 
then the 5th Safest Town, down to the 18th Safest Town that is a concern for all.   Police Chief Willhite 
has been proactive, giving the Council six (6) other municipalities in Eastern North Carolina that have 
more personnel than Winterville as a comparison.  Ayden and Farmville have more officers than 
Winterville and are half the size of Winterville.    

 
Mr. Henderson wanted clarification on whether the statement from Councilman Moore meant the 
Council did not see the need of having more officers.  Councilman Moore reiterated citizens would have 
received a tax increase.  Mr. Henderson stated the citizens are the taxpayers and the Town is growing 
as close as Winterville is to Greenville.  Winterville and the Town Council need to look at trying to form 
a partnership with Greenville interact with each Police Department.  There are residents in Greenville 
that have Winterville addresses, if that is the case why not look at doing a partnership with Greenville 
Police Department.  Meet and talk about the departments can interact and if Greenville Police come 
into Winterville and help with this problem.  Councilman Moore explained that Winterville is much safer 
than Greenville.  During the Budget Hearings last week, no one spoke except for money for the Sara-
Law Softball Complex.  Mr. Henderson stated honestly, the citizens especially the black community, do 
not come up to speak due to feeling ignored when they have been up to speak.  Mayor Jackson 
informed Mr. Henderson that he has been speaking for eight (8) minutes instead of three (3) minutes.  
Mr. Henderson explained that he was answering a question from a Council Member.  Councilman 
Moore thanked Mr. Henderson and letting him know the Council is concerned.   
 
Mayor Jackson stated the Council was given a sheet with the Chapter 96 Noise Ordinance and 
explained that he has always advocated that something be done about number eight (8): All noises 
coming from a motor vehicles properly equipped with the manufacturers standard mufflers and noise 
reducing equipment.  A couple of cars that are behind my residence that make just as much noise as a 

48



 

 

12 
 

dump truck when riding on Cooper Street.  The culprits are not just in North Winterville also on Cooper 
Street and everywhere else.   
 
Councilman Moye requested permission to ask Mr. Henderson one question.  Mayor Jackson stated, 
“Not supposed to but go ahead”.  Councilman Moye asked Mr. Henderson if there is a particular time 
that the noise comes by to assist staff.  Mr. Henderson commented that it was worrisome late in the 
afternoon on into the night, and during school time interrupting students and teachers.   
 
Councilman Moore thanked the Police Chief and the Department for handling a moped that would ride 
around the Town every night with a very loud sound that heard from miles away.  Living on a 
thoroughfare, hear noise all night long just not the music part.  Council is concerned and next year’s 
budget will look at adding additional officers.  Possibly mid-way of the budget year add officers.   
 
Councilwoman Roberson seems like extra patrols in the area have helped reduce some of the 
problems.  Noticed sometimes the Police Department is more visible in certain areas that there are 
problems, maybe that is something the Chief can do to help.  It is very hard to get somebody when no 
one will call when the problem occurs.  Do not want to see people getting ticket after ticket, just need a 
reminder about the noise because it is bothering others. Maybe that is something that can be done, 
since officers are already on patrol and respond to whatever is happening in Town.  Understand that 
things happen and the officers have to leave, just if the people that have the loud vehicles know that the 
Police may be there may stop the noise. 
 
Councilman Moore explained that Greenville has the highest accident record in North Carolina for five 
(5) years straight.  Was in an accident and it took 40 minutes for the Highway Patrol to get to the 
accident. Hoping leadership in the County would do something about adding additional law 
enforcement officers through Pitt County and additional money for roads.   
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  The following items are considered routine in nature and will not be discussed 
by the Town Council unless a Councilman or citizen requests that an item be removed from the 
Consent Agenda for further discussion.  The Mayor may allow citizens to address an item or ask 
questions. 
 

1. May 8, 2017 Regular Meeting Minutes. 
2. May 30, 2017 Special Meeting Minutes. 
3. Budget Amendment. 
4. Approval of Annual Audit Contract. 
5. Approval of Highway 11 Right-of-Way ditch Mowing Contract with Precision Lawn Care. 
 

Motion made by Mayor Pro-Tem Smith and seconded by Councilman Moore to approve items on 
the consent agenda. Motion carried unanimously. 
  
OLD BUSINESS:  

 
1. Adoption of 2017-2018 Fiscal Year Budget Ordinance.  

 

49



 

 

13 
 

Councilman Moore stated during the meeting last week (June 5, 2017 Budget Public Hearing), three 
(3) people came and spoke about Sara Law Softball Complex.  I would make the motion, saw $27,000 
left over from the Planning Department and I make a motion to add to this year’s budget $5,000 for the 
Sara Law Complex.  Will make the motion later as a separate part since it will be in this year’s budget. 
 
Manager Parker addressed the Council concerning the budget workshops and the budget hearing that 
have taken place.  The Budget Ordinance in Council’s packet, unless Council has any further questions 
or directions Staff would ask that Council approve the Budget Ordinance for Budget Year 2017-2018.   
 
Councilman Moye wanted to comment about his reservations on the merit pay, feels each staff 
member should receive the same thing.  Everyone is a team player; however, after speaking with some 
of the staff and hearing that staff wanted the chance at a merit raise.  Therefore, I would like to vote yes 
on the merit pay system that I previously voted against.    
 
Manager Parker thanked Councilman Moye and stated Staff would be pleased to hear the vote for the 
merit pay.  Thanks for the hard work from Council and Staff, for a process that was challenging 
different; however, well worth it in the end.   
 
Councilwoman Roberson thanked Manager Parker for all the work getting the budget together with as 
modest of an investment from the Fund Balance. Making sure Council maintained Winterville’s tax rate. 
Appreciate the work that Staff and Manager did getting the budget as close to where it is now.  
 
Motion made by Mayor Pro-Tem Smith and seconded by Councilman Moore to adopt 2017-2018 
Fiscal Year Budget Ordinance.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 
2. Approval of New Regional Pump Station and Collection System Rehabilitation Project Request 

for Additional Funding through the Division of Water Infrastructure.  Public Works Director 
Welborn explained to Council that Town Staff has been working with the Engineer and have bid 
out the New Regional Lift Station and Sewer Rehab Project on May 18, 2017.  With the current 
economy, the bids came in over what was budgeted from the Engineer a couple of years ago 
since it has been updated.  In order to complete the entire project and keep the 10% 
contingency in case we run into any issues during construction, Staff will need to increase the 
loan amount by $255,841.00.  The total loan amount would be $2,390,361.00, which includes 
construction, engineering and construction administration from the engineer. 

 
Manager Parker asked if anyone had any questions on the project. Staff just needs approval to move 
forward. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Mayor Pro-Tem Smith to approve new 
regional pump station and collection system rehabilitation project request for additional funding 
through the Division of Water Infrastructure.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 

3. Renewal of General Engineering Services Agreement – The Wooten Company.  Assistant 
Manager Williams explained to Council that earlier the Town’s general consulting engineer 
would be reviewing subdivision plans particularly Copper Creek.  The Town has a contract set-
up with the Wooten Company for the small type of engineering subdivision review plan, and 
small little projects.  The contract before Council is to renew that service contract for one (1) 
more year through June 30, 2018.  The amount of the contract is an hourly basis; however, staff 
is setting the limit for $30,000 for the next year.   

 

50



 

 

14 
 

Councilman Moye wanted to know what the cap is on small engineering projects with the Wooten 
Company.  Assistant Manager Williams stated that depending on the type of service professional there 
is a threshold on when the project would have to go out for RFQ’s.  Type of projects The Wooten 
Company are doing would be in the $100’s to low $1,000s.  When the project gets over General 
Services and reaches $30,000 - $50,000 the project would then have to go out for RFQ’s.    
 
Motion made by Mayor Pro-Tem Smith and seconded by Councilman Moore to approve renewal 
of general engineering services agreement with The Wooten Company. Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
 

1. Final Plat – Villa Grande Subdivision, Phase I, Section A.  Economic Planner Penn reported to 
Council that the Council reviewed the preliminary plat for Villa Grande a while back and this 
would be the first Final Plat for Villa Grande Subdivision, Phase 1, Section A.   Property is 
located on the west side of Red Forbes Road near Pocosin Road.  The Preliminary Plat showed 
eighty-five (85) lots on 32.94 acres with the subdivision to be done in two (2) sections.  Phase I, 
Section A is 15.12 acres section with thirty-six (36) lots and R-10 zoning.  Planning and Zoning 
Board unanimously recommended approval of the Final Plat back on May 16, 2016.  The Final 
Plat has received full staff approval.  Staff recommends approval of the Final Plat to Council.  

 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Mayor Pro-Tem Smith to approve Final 
Plat for Villa Grande Subdivision, Phase I, Section A. Motion carried unanimously. 
 

2. Final Plat – Thad’s Reedy Branch Subdivision. Economic Planner Penn informed Council of 
the map provided for the meeting.  Property is located off Reedy Branch Road served by Grace 
Brook Lane.  From a principle tract, 08601 that is 39 acres will cut out a .6032 acres site.  
Planning and Zoning recommended approval at the May 15, 2017 meeting.   

 
Councilman Moore wanted to know the zoning of the property.  Economic Planner Penn stated the 
zoning is AR District.  
 
Motion made by Mayor Pro-Tem Smith and seconded by Councilman Moye to approve final plat 
for Thad’s Reedy Branch Subdivision. Motion carried unanimously. 
 

3. Approval of AIA Contract with Rivers and Associates. Assistant Manager Williams explained 
to Councilman Moye that the contract before the Council, is one that would need to go through 
the process (referring back to the approval of Renewal of General Engineering Services from 
Old Business).  Council approved Resolution to submit an application to the State last year to 
request grant money to conduct an asset inventory and assessment of the Town’s sewer 
system.  The Town was awarded the grant funding and Rivers and Associates was given the 
contract.  Rivers and Associates have been working through the evaluation, night time flow 
monitoring done and hope to finalize the document.  Council also allowed staff to submit an 
application to the same funding agency to develop the same asset and assessment of our 
drinking water distribution system.  The Town was approved and Council accepted the offer, 
which Staff then went out and requested statement of qualifications (RFQ’s) from engineer firms 
and have reviewed those RFQ’s and are recommending Rivers and Associates to conduct the 
assessments for the drinking water system.  The Town was awarded a full $150,000, and the 
town is matching $30,000 for a total budget of $180,000.  Thus far the negotiated project scope 

51



 

 

15 
 

of the initial contract amount will be for $141,000, with the remaining funds will be left for 
contingency. 

 
Motion made by Mayor Pro-Tem Smith and seconded by Councilman Moore to approve AIA 
Contract with Rivers and Associates. Motion carried unanimously. 
 

1. Resolution for Greenway Engineering Project. Assistant Manager Williams explained that the 
Division of Water Resources Project Development Grant Program turned the town down on the 
drainage project on Railroad Street; however, in the same money provide funding to do the 
engineering feasibility type study that Mr. Webb with SEPI was doing on the stormwater side.  
Division of Water Resources Project Development Grant Program also has money for 
Greenway Engineering projects or projects that are around and include water resources. Staff is 
requesting approval of a Resolution to file an application with Division of Water Resources 
Project Development Grant Program that is due at the end of June 2017 to conduct an 
engineering study that will evaluate the environmental and engineering components for the 
greenway along Fort Swamp Canal and Long Branch Canal.  The grant is a 50/50 match, staff 
is asking for the same amount that the Town was awarded for the drainage study, which will be 
requesting $35,000 from Division of Water Resources Project Development Grant Program and 
the town would need matching $35,000.   

 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Councilwoman Roberson to approve 
resolution for Greenway Engineering Project. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Councilman Moye questioned the $35,000 already being part of the budget process.  Assistant 
Manager Williams stated the funds would most likely come out of the $90,000 engineering line item for 
the Recreation Department.  Staff is trying to take the amount approved by Council and then maximize 
the funds as much as possible.  Councilman Moye wanted to know where the amount that was placed 
into the Recreation Department engineering fund would go.  Assistant Manager Williams explained that 
the Town has to match dollar for dollar for the grant in question, which means since the amount 
requested is $35,000 then the town would have to match $35,000.  Should the study begin and 
additional money is needed the additional funds would be used.  Staff is trying to get funding to match 
what is necessary, as there will be more than $70,000 worth of engineering on a project like the 
Greenway.  Staff is looking at a cost just looking at previous projects that have been done, $1.5 million 
to $2.5 million depending on what is done with the project; take 10% of the cost toward engineering on 
a project that large would be about $120,000 - $150,000 in fees. Councilman Moye wanted to know the 
estimated length of the greenway, maybe half a mile or two (2) miles.  Assistant Manager Williams 
looked to Parks and Recreation Director Johnston to give an answer on the estimated length.  Parks 
and Recreation Director Johnston stated possible six (6) miles.  Assistant Manager Williams explained 
that the trail would make a loop and come down Long Branch Canal at Old Tar Road at the Town Limits 
and then run down Fort Swamp Canal and tie into Main Street.  May need some road improvement 
along Main Street.  In the Parks and Recreation Plan and the Active Transportation Plan that loop took 
it all the way from AR Zoned area from Old Tar Road to all the way to the property the Town owns on 
Main Street to Winterville Downtown.   
 

2. Condemnation of Easements. Assistant Manager Williams reminded Council that the 
condemnation of Easements is related to the project Public Works Director Welborn spoke 
about earlier for additional funding (New Regional Pump Station and Collection System 
Rehabilitation Project Request for Additional Funding through the Division of Water 
Infrastructure).  The sewer line and pump station portion of the project requires the Town to put 
some lines in areas that are kind of tight, where there is not enough room in DOT right of way.  

52



 

 

16 
 

The project requires the Town acquire Utility Easements along private property, and Staff has 
been working since the Fall 2016 contacting property owners and working towards acquiring the 
easements to install sewer lines. Staff has acquired some of the easements and some have not 
been acquired.  Due to the time, constraints and funding related to the project, staff is asking 
that Council approve staff and our Town Attorney with moving forward if unable to reach a 
resolution with the property owner to allow staff to move forward with the condemnation process 
for only the private property that is necessary to conduct the project.  Staff is not condemning 
the entire property to include the house.  The condemnation would just be in some cases a five 
(5) foot wide across the front of the property and some maybe a fifteen (15) foot strip. Mayor 
Pro-Tem Smith questioned how many signatures where still needed.  Assistant Manager 
Williams stated currently about twenty-three (23) signatures are needed, which some are owned 
by the same people.  Staff is currently having discussions with most of the folks, and staff would 
like for the problem to resolve own its own soon.  Mayor Pro-Tem Smith wanted to know how 
many staff anticipated having a problem with getting the signed easements.  Assistant Manager 
Williams was not sure, as things change and have one conversation with an individual one week 
and the weekend may have changed the individual to a better mood.  Manager Parker gave 
Staff credit, as Staff has been working on acquiring the signatures themselves and have put an 
inordinate amount of time with many frequent visits; however, they are working hard to get the 
signatures to not require condemnation of the easements.  Assistant Manager Williams 
explained that staff has been working on these easements for about nine (9) months now; 
however, most cases try to work it out in ninety (90) days and then move on to the 
condemnation step.  Councilman Moye wanted to know what the property owner received if the 
property in question is condemned.  Assistant Manager Williams explained that the Town would 
go through a process where just compensation is provided based on the area that is being 
condemned, if there is any improvement to the property as a result of the project there may be a 
deduction of the value of what may or may not be owed to the property owner.  Majority of the 
properties, especially on Cooper Street are in the minimum building line and there are no 
improvements that can be made in that area, aside from simple vegetative planting.  No one can 
construct permanent structures within the areas in question; therefore, not a huge reduction in 
what the owner is able to do with the area of the property in question.  Councilman Moye 
wanted to know if the property owner would receive compensation.  Assistant Manager Williams 
reiterated that there would be a process to determine the just compensation of each property 
individually.  Attorney Lassiter explained that the Town would file a condemnation action 
(lawsuit) and would come up with an evaluation of what that easement area is worth.  Attorney 
Lassiter’s opinion, as not an appraiser, there is not going to be a lot of value in the easement 
area.  The money would be placed with the Clerk of Court and file the action, which would 
enable the Town to go ahead and start the project.  Over a period of months, there would be an 
agreement or the jury would decide what the area is worth.  Councilman Moye stated thank you 
for the information. 

 
Motion made by Mayor Pro-Tem Smith and seconded by Councilman Moore to approve 
condemnation of easements. Motion carried unanimously. 
 

Manager Parker informed Council that Staff would keep them apprised of the process as it 
moved along.   

 
3. Parks and Recreation Advisory Board Appointment.  Parks & Recreation Director Johnston 

informed the Council the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board has a non-resident vacancy and 
an alternate that currently serves on the Board.  Traditionally the alternate is appointed to the 
alternate seat if the residency matches, and in this case the alternate is a non-resident, Mrs. 

53



 

 

17 
 

Victoria Hawkins.  Staff recommends appointing Mrs. Hawkins to the non-resident Board 
vacancy.   

 
Mayor Jackson asked if there were any other nominations, hearing none proceed with the vote. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Mayor Pro-Tem Smith to approve Parks 
and Recreation Advisory Board Appointment of Victoria Hawkins.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Councilwoman Roberson questioned how many openings the Parks and Recreation Board has 
currently.  Parks and Recreation Director Johnston stated there are two (2) openings; one (1) in-town 
resident and one (1) alternate could be in-town or non-resident.    
 
OTHER AGENDA ITEMS: 
 

1. Discussion of Amending the Animal Control Ordinance to Allow Chickens and Honey Bees 
within the Town Limits. Town Manager Parker explained that Staff has received request over 
recent months, and some of the Council has been approached individually about changing the 
Town’s Ordinance to allow chickens in town.   Honey Bees has been more recently been 
requested, as well.  Staff has done some research on what other towns in our area do with 
respect to chickens and honeybees.  Staff is ready to move forward to try to draft something 
appropriate for Winterville if it is the Council’s wishes.  Staff asked that if the Council does 
decide to allow particularly chickens that the number is minimal and no roosters allowed.   

 
Mayor Jackson explained that five (5) different people had contacted him and every one of them 
where against having chickens in Winterville.  Councilman Moore stated the calls received by him are 
also no and not any yes’.  Manager Parker reminded Council that a request would be made to change 
the meeting month the Council chose for no meeting from July to the August meeting.  Requested to 
move the discussion to the next meeting date.  Councilman Moore questioned what would happen with 
the Brock property should the meeting date be changed.  Councilwoman Roberson asked if the Council 
were to adopt an Ordinance to have chickens and bees who would patrol and enforce the restrictions.  
Manager Parker reiterated that the Police Department enforces the Town’s Animal Control Ordinances 
along with Public Works, and would be a combined effort.  Staff is not actively involved with those 
animals and it would take some time for Staff to receive training.  Additional effort with code 
enforcement may be necessary depending on the complaint, as it could be a nuisance case.  
Councilwoman Roberson ask Council to consider that opening up the Ordinance to add chickens and 
honey bees would add extra burden to the Police Department and the Town’s workforce to enforce the 
ordinance.  Have received lots of information about chickens that I did not know that people have 
voluntarily given the Council.  Would be an extra burden to enforce with noise and having additional 
animals that would need to be controlled.  Ask Council to please consider staff when making the 
decision.  Manager Parker reiterated that Staff would ask that Council consider the additional burdens, 
as well.   
 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Mayor Pro-Tem Smith to move discussion 
of amending the Animal Control Ordinance to allow chickens and honeybees within the Town 
Limits to the August agenda.  Motion carried unanimously with verbiage “next council meeting” 
instead of August agenda. 
 

2. Discussion of Chamber Duties/Town Economic Development Duties (Councilwoman Roberson).  
Manager Parker explained to Council that Councilwoman Roberson had asked to add the 
discussion of Chamber Duties/Town Economic Development Duties.  Councilwoman Roberson 

54



 

 

18 
 

spoke to the Council concerning a couple of years ago before the Town hired an Economic 
Development Planner the Council funded the Chamber.  Part of the funding for the Chamber 
was for the Chamber to take on the duties of economic development in the town.  Since that 
time, the Town has hired Stephen Penn, which is doing a wonderful job, to work in the Town’s 
economic development department.  The Town has also made strides by going to the 
conventions and developed information to share with prospective businesses to come to the 
Town.  Basically, there were some questions about the Chamber, even though the Chamber’s 
duty is to work with existing businesses, the duties do overlap a little bit.  Main responsibility of 
the Chamber is existing businesses.   Feel there needs to be a line drawn with what duties are 
completed by the Chamber and by the economic development department.  Councilman Moore 
stated he has scheduled a meeting to speak with the Chamber Board to encourage the board to 
take on the Winterville Christmas Parade, which would help the Town financially.  The Town 
feeds people at the Christmas Council Reception, which was brought up to the Chamber to take 
on those duties with the parade.  The Chamber used to be responsible for the parade.  That 
would give the Chamber additional responsibilities.  Councilwoman Roberson commented that 
the changes would not be made until next year’s budget.  Councilman Moore reminded Council 
that even the budget was adopted, the budget changes throughout the year, just something to 
work with originally.  Council does additions to the budget all through the year, for instance find 
out half way through the year that we need additional police officers.  Council ads and subtracts 
from the budget all year, nothing is set in stone.  Councilman Moye stated that during the 
budget process he brought the question up about the Chamber duties and the economic 
Development Department.  At that time, the Council was told that the two (2) are different 
because the Chamber handles the ribbon cuttings and invite different people to come in to 
Town; Economic Development goes out and tries to bring in businesses into the community.  
Manager Parker reiterated that Councilman Moye was correct, that the Chamber supports 
existing business through a variety of ways and what Stephen Penn does is promote new 
businesses.  If the Town supports current business, meaning expanding and/or building 
additions, Stephen would assist with those endeavors. Stephen preforms various planning 
functions for the Town when necessary as it relates to the position for Economic Development.  
See the two (2) as very different and do not feel that job of the Economic Development Planner 
would be to preform Chamber functions.  Economic Planner Penn explained that a Chamber of 
Commerce is typically a shorter range and smaller scope, as well.  The Chamber’s interest are 
usually in networking for existing businesses for people to get to know each other.  A couple of 
weeks ago a group was coming into to Town with a new gym and wanted to know how to reach 
out to people and get to know the community, directed them to the Chamber to speak with 
Debbie Avery.  Feel that is a good example that happens fairly often.  The Chamber takes 
money and have to work on behalf of those within their group, and as the Town would not like to 
show any favoritism.  Another thing with the Chamber, they are trying to promote from within the 
organizations group, for example if there were a grocery store in the Chamber group the 
Chamber would not reach out to additional grocery stores to come to the Town.  Economic 
Development job is to reach out and bring in more businesses, which may not be popular with 
the existing grocery store, since that will bring competition.  A new business will bring jobs, 
additional traffic and tax base to the community.  There are times when the two (2) overlap and 
have to communicate; however, lots of variations in the two (2) job, as well.  Be glad to discuss 
and answer any questions.  Councilman Moye stated the reason he had questions, since the 
Town does help fund the Chamber with $20,000 a year.  How much of the ribbon cutting 
ceremonies are done in the community, how much of the investment come back into the Town 
of Winterville.  Economic Planner Penn requested clarification on Councilman Moye’s question, 
wanting to know what the return on the investment of $20,000.  Councilman Moore explained 
that the Chamber has programs to help businesses stay in business.  Have workshops on 

55



 

 

19 
 

marketing our business, have a speaker that comes in on a regular basis.  These programs help 
so many new businesses that would be here for a year and gone the next year.  Even if the new 
business receives one tip that will help their business marketability, this may help the company 
stay in business.  A business is a tremendous investment up front, and about 80% do not make 
it more than one or two years.  Economic Planner Penn reiterated that it is a huge help to the 
business to get to know other businesses in the area, helps to work with each other and play off 
each other and receive advice from each other.  Manager Parker stated each group that 
receives the Non-Town Agency Funding submits a report on what the funding did the previous 
year, sure the Chamber submitted one for this budget.  If may be helpful to have Mrs. Debbie 
Avery come to give the Council a verbal report.  Would be glad to handle inviting if the Council 
would like.  Councilman Moore and Councilman Moye thought it would be a great idea to invite 
Mrs. Avery to speak before the Council.   
 

3. Discussion on money left from previous Budget. Councilman Moore stated Planning had money 
in the amount of $27,000 from the previous budget.  Manager Parker was unsure where 
Councilman Moore got the amount of $27,000, and asked where Councilman Moore got that 
figure.  Councilman Moore explained that the budget that was left in his box on Friday had the 
figure.  Manager Parker stated the number would need to be verified, as the Finance Director 
Bowers and Manager are not sure the figure is accurate.  Councilman Moore wanted to know if 
it is better to make the motion know or in the August meeting about appropriating the money.  
Manager Parker asked for the motion to be at the next meeting to give Staff a chance to verify 
the amount first.   
 

Councilwoman Roberson wanted to make sure the citizens are aware that the Town does provide the 
Chamber with office space.  With some of the other agencies the Town funds, the Town also looked at 
the services that the Town provides, like the Watermelon Festival investment of time.  If the Town does 
certain things for one agency, the Town should do the same for all agencies.  The Town is providing an 
office space, which pays no utilities and no payment coming out of the Chamber’s money for office 
space or phone.   

 
Councilman Moore wanted to remind everyone about the upcoming ribbon cutting ceremony for the 
Train Depot on Friday, June 16, 2017 at 1:00 pm .  The town has been waiting on this ribbon cutting for 
a long time, almost nine (9) years. A lot of money has been invested in the Depot project, $100,000 in 
the Depot Facility.  Hope the Depot will be an asset for years to come.   
 
Councilman Moore wanted to inform Council that he had invited Representative Murphy to have a 
Town Hall meeting before the Kiwanis Club on July 6th, hope Representative Murphy agrees to come 
and talk about what he has done for Pitt County.  Councilwoman Roberson stated she appreciates 
Representative Murphy’s support of the Town’s project on Boyd Street, not sure if that made a 
difference; however, I believe it did make a difference.  The project is on the map and is getting 
consideration from the Department of Transportation (DOT).  Understand in 2018 may see some dirt 
turned on the project, Representative Murphy was asked to support the project and he did support the 
project.  Councilman Moore stated in March of 2018 for the project to begin.   
 
REPORTS FROM DEPARTMENT HEADS 
 
Update on Projects Currently Underway: Assistant Manager Williams 
 

56



 

 

20 
 

1. Parks and Recreation Bathroom Project – Recreation Park and Hillcrest are both complete and 
fully functional. 

2. Regional Sewer Pump Station Project – Still underway, working on getting the easements.  
3. Nobel Canal Drainage Basin Study – heard the wrap up on that project and will submit final 

paperwork to the funding agency to get the reimbursement done. 
4. Water Tank Rehabilitation Project – waiting on review and approvals from the state, everything 

is moving along. Councilman Moore questioned about the water extension finalized payment on 
Worthington Road. Assistant Manager Williams stated that project has not been finalized as of 
yet.  Working on the project since September 2015; however, the water is flowing. Contractor 
final close-out is all paperwork.  

5. NTE Plant Construction Project – Plant project is moving along and hope to have some updated 
pictures next month.  

6. Minimum Housing/Code Enforcement – Code enforcement is sending out lots of letters on grass 
and folks have been very responsive. Town’s has a cut a few since the owner was unable. 
Councilman Moore wanted to know how many houses are to be repaired.  Assistant Manager 
Williams stated one (1) is working with the Town and one (1) is working on their own to get 
repairs.  Councilman Moore questioned the deadline on one of the properties being Jun 10th.  
Assistant Manager Williams stated would follow-up with the date and get Council a list and 
status on both projects.   

7. Junk Car Enforcement Project – Manager Parker informed Council that the junk car 
enforcement is underway.  Police Department is working furiously to notify owners of the 
vehicles that they need to abate that nuisance and will get Council more specific numbers in the 
near future.    

8. Urgent Repair Program – wrap things up on the second round of repairs that Rebuilding 
Together has been working on and should wrap that up in the next several weeks.  Based off of 
funding and going into the new budget year, Staff will work on getting the third group together to 
submit the addresses before Council for consideration.    

 
 
REPORTS FROM THE TOWN ATTORNEY, MAYOR AND TOWN COUNCIL, AND TOWN 
MANAGER. 
 
Attorney Lassiter – no report; however, just a reminder that there is a closed session meeting to 
follow. 
 
Councilman Moore – Thank Board and Staff on the job done on the budget. Thank everyone for being 
civil. 
 
Councilwoman Roberson – Do appreciate the idea that the Board is very civil, disagree just agree to 
disagree.  Appreciate the Town Staff for everything they do to keep the Town looking good.  Like that 
able to tell on Highway 11 when you leave the Town’s jurisdiction, because our area looks so nice.   
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Smith – no report. 
 
Councilman Hill – Notice the ALC Ambassador program has requested I return for a reunion in July 
13th and 14th and would like to ask the Board to allow my attendance.  Councilman Moore stated there 
is $4,000 left over in the travel budget for the Board this year.  Manager Parker explained that Council 
did not travel as much this year.  Councilwoman Roberson will be attending as well. 
 

57



 

 

21 
 

Mayor Jackson – have been approached by two (2) different farmers from western section and one 
from the eastern section of Town about a gas line.  Does anyone know anything about a gas line that is 
coming.  Manager Parker stated Staff knows of a gas project; however, it is not anything that affects the 
Town specifically.  Glad to forward additional information to Council; however, it is not in the Town of 
Winterville and is not anything extra and additional to what is going on in Town.  Mayor Jackson 
explained that the two (2) individuals that talked with him are really concerned about the gas line going 
across their property.  Mayor Pro-Tem Smith stated some of the lines in question have already changed 
within the last few weeks.  Manager Parker reiterated that the project has to do with moving lines and 
rerouting lines and does not have anything to do with the Town, yet staff was made aware of the 
project.  Mayor Jackson wanted to know where the information is coming from.  Manager Parker 
informed Council that Staff would get them detailed information.   
 
Manager Parker requested Council move the previously requested month to be skipped from July to 
hold a regular meeting to August due to some items that need to be addressed.  Would ask that 
Council have a regular July meeting and skip the regular meeting in August. 
 
Motion was made by Mayor Pro-Tem Smith and seconded by Councilman Moore to move the 
skipped meeting to August instead of the July meeting. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Manager Parker under announcements the section that states no meeting in July will now be changed.  
Council will meet in July and not August 14th. 
 
Motion was made by Mayor Pro-Tem Smith and seconded by Councilwoman Roberson to 
adjourn into Closed Session Meeting. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
ADJOURN:  Having no further business to come before the Council the meeting adjourned.  
 
Motion was made by Councilwoman Roberson to adjourn and seconded by Councilman Moore 
to adjourn. Motion carried unanimously. 
 

Adopted this the 13th day of November, 2017. 

 

            _____________________________________ 
            Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor  

ATTEST:  
 

 
____________________________________ 
Amy P. Barrow, Acting Town Clerk 

58



Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract  

Meeting Date: November 13, 2017 
Presenter: Stephen, Economic Development 
Planner 

Item Section:  Consent Agenda 

Item to be Considered 
Subject: Annexation - Ange Plaza Lot 2.  

Action Requested: Direct Town Clerk to Investigate the Sufficiency of Annexation. 

Attachments: Annexation Map, Annexation Petition and Metes and Bounds.   

Prepared By: Stephen Penn, Economic Development Planner Date: 10/26/2017 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 
 TC  FD  TM  tlp – 11/6/2017  Final  tlp – 11/6/2017 

Supporting Documentation 
Te Ching Tseng and Wife, Yet Young Tseng are applying for annexation of Ange Plaza Lot 2. 

Ange Plaza Lot 2: 

Location: 701 W. Fire Tower Road. (Parcel Number:  55197). Corner of Fire Tower Road and Whitley Drive. 

Size: 1.136 acres.  

Zoned: General Business.  

Annexation Process: 

1st Council Meeting: Direct Town Clerk to Investigate the Sufficiency of the Annexation. 

2nd Council Meeting: Schedule a Public Hearing for the Annexation. 

3rd Council Meeting: Hold Public Hearing on the Annexation.  

Budgetary Impact:  TBD. 

Recommendation:  Direct Town Clerk to Investigate Sufficiency. 

59



Resolution No. _______ 

 

RESOLUTION DIRECTION THE ACTING TOWN CLERK TO INVESTIGATE  
A PETITION RECEIVED UNDER NCGS 160A-31 

 
Ange Plaza Lot 2 

 
 WHEREAS, a petition requesting annexation of an area described in said petition was 
received on October 5, 2017 by the Town Council; and 
 
 WHEREAS, NCGS 160A-31 provides that the sufficiency of the petition shall be 
investigated by the Acting Town Clerk before further annexation proceedings may take place; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Town Council of the Town of Winterville seems it advisable to proceed 
in response to this request for annexation. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Council of the Town of Winterville 
that: 
 

The Acting Town Clerk is hereby directed to investigate the sufficiency of the 
above-described petition and to certify as soon as possible to the Town Council 
the result of her investigation. 

 
Adopted this the 13th day of November, 2017. 

 
 
 
 
       ___________________________________ 
       Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Amy Parker Barrow, Acting Town Clerk 

60



61



 
 

 
 
 
 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY TO BE 
ANNEXED INTO THE TOWN OF WINTERVILLE 

TE CHING TSENG PROPERTY 
WINTERVILLE TOWNSHIP, PITT, NC 

OCTOBER 5, 2017 
 

Beginning at a point where the southern right-of-way of NCSR 1708 (W. Fire Tower Road) 
intersects the western right-of-way of Whitley Drive.  From the above described beginning, 
so located, running thence as follows: 
 
With the western right-of-way of Whitley Drive S 43°47'32" E 30.99’ and S 00°59'08" W 
203.00’ to an existing P.K. Nail where the western right-of-way of Whitley Drive intersects 
the northern right-of-way of Tilco Road, thence with the northern right-of-way of Tilco 
Road, N 89°00'52" W 221.00’ to a point at the southeastern corner of Lot 3, Ange Plaza as 
recorded in Map Book 77, Page 148 of the Pitt County Register of Deeds Office, thence 
with the eastern line of said Lot 3, Ange Plaza N 00°59'08" E 225.00’ to an existing iron 
stake on the southern right-of-way of NCSR 1708 (W. Fire Tower Road), thence with the 
southern right-of-way of NCSR 1708 (W. Fire Tower Road), S 89°00'52" E 199.17’ to the 
point of beginning containing 1.136 acres.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Y:\WORD-DOC\LEGAL DESCRIPTION\ANNEXATION\17-112 Annexation.docx  
  

62



63



 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract  
 

Meeting Date: November 13, 2017 
Presenter: Stephen, Economic Development 
Planner 

 

Item Section:  Consent Agenda 

Item to be Considered 
Subject: Annexation of Ange Plaza Lot 23 & 26.  

Action Requested: Direct Town Clerk to Investigate the Sufficiency of Annexation.   

Attachments: Annexation Map, Annexation Petition and Metes and Bounds.   

Prepared By: Stephen Penn, Economic Development Planner Date: 10/26/2017 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 
 TC         FD        TM  tlp – 11/6/2017  Final  tlp – 11/6/2017 

Supporting Documentation 
Collice and Ann Moore LLC & Linda E. Keel are applying for annexation of Ange Plaza Lots 23 and 26. (Final 
plats have been submitted and are currently under staff review).  

Ange Plaza Lot 23 & 26: (Final Plats have been submitted and are scheduled for the staff development review 
process) 

Location: In Ange Plaza off of Beacon Drive and Connector Dr. (Currently part of Parcel numbers 52963 and 
73421) 

Size: 5.4756 Acres. 

Zoned: General Business. 

 

Annexation Process: 

1st Council Meeting: Direct Town Clerk to Investigate the Sufficiency of the Annexation.  

2nd Council Meeting: Schedule a Public Hearing for the Annexation. 

3rd Council Meeting: Hold Public Hearing on the Annexation.  

Budgetary Impact:  TBD. 

Recommendation:  Direct Town Clerk to Investigate Sufficiency.  

 

64



Resolution No. _______ 

 

RESOLUTION DIRECTION THE ACTING TOWN CLERK TO INVESTIGATE  
A PETITION RECEIVED UNDER NCGS 160A-31 

 
Ange Plaza Lot 23 and 26 

 
 WHEREAS, a petition requesting annexation of an area described in said petition was 
received on October 2, 2017 by the Town Council; and 
 
 WHEREAS, NCGS 160A-31 provides that the sufficiency of the petition shall be 
investigated by the Acting Town Clerk before further annexation proceedings may take place; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Town Council of the Town of Winterville seems it advisable to proceed 
in response to this request for annexation. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Council of the Town of Winterville 
that: 
 

The Acting Town Clerk is hereby directed to investigate the sufficiency of the 
above-described petition and to certify as soon as possible to the Town Council 
the result of her investigation. 

 
Adopted this the 13th day of November, 2017. 

 
 
 
 
       ___________________________________ 
       Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Amy Parker Barrow, Acting Town Clerk 

65



66



67



68



Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract  

Meeting Date: November 13, 2017 
Presenter: Anthony Bowers, Finance Director 

Item Section:  Consent Agenda 

Item to be Considered 
Subject: Resolution Approving the Financing (Recreation Truck, Recreation Van, and Electric Line Truck) with 
First Citizens Bank and Trust (FCB). 

Action Requested: Adopt the Resolution. 

Attachments: Bid Tabulation; Resolution will be Handed out at the Meeting.

Prepared By: Anthony Bowers, Finance Director Date: 11/6/2017 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 
 TC  FD  TM  tlp - 11/7/2017  Final  tlp – 11/7/2017 

Supporting Documentation 
As part of the 2017-2018 Budget the Town Council approved the use of debt for the purchase of several capital 
outlay items.  This installment purchase agreement provides financing for two (2) Recreation Department 
vehicles (truck ad van) and a new Electric line truck.  The term for the Recreation vehicles is for three (3) years 
at 2.05% interest.  The term for the Electric line truck is for five (5) years at a rate of 2.05% interest.   

Bids were received from three (3) lenders on October 27th.  First Citizens Bank and Trust was the low bidder.  

We are recommending that the Council accept the proposed rate and award the contract to FCB with the 
adoption of the attached resolution. 

Budgetary Impact: The total being financed is $56,500 for Recreation and $265,000 for Electric. 

Recommendation:  Adopt the Resolution. 

69



Town of Winterville
Bid Tabulation

Recreation Vehicles

Bank Rate

BB&T 2.09%
First Citizens 2.05%
First National Bank 2.49%
Wells Fargo No Bid

Town of Winterville
Bid Tabulation

Electric Line Truck

Bank Rate

BB&T 2.28%
First Citizens 2.05%
First National Bank 2.49%
Wells Fargo No Bid

70



 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract  
 

Meeting Date: November 13, 2017 
Presenter: Stephen, Economic Development 
Planner 

 

Item Section:  Consent Agenda 

Item to be Considered 
Subject: Winterville Machine Works Recombination Plat. 

Action Requested: Approval of Recombination Plat.  

Attachments: Recombination Map.  

Prepared By: Stephen Penn, Economic Development Planner Date: 10/26/2017 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 
 TC         FD        TM  tlp – 11/8/2017  Final  tlp – 11/8/2017 

Supporting Documentation 
Winterville Machine Works (WMW) Recombination Plat: 

Location: Corner of Cross Street and Cooper Street behind the existing Winterville Machine Works Facility on 
Mill Street. Parcel Numbers: 16946 & 24422. 

Size: Parcel 24422= 0.35 acres; Parcel 16946= 0.37 acres. Combined, they will total 0.72 Acres. 

History: WMW obtained a Variance from the Winterville Board of Adjustment that allows them to expand their 
facility within this area- due to the limited space in their facility. The variance allows setback and bufferyard 
deviation. The conditions of the variance can be obtained through the Winterville Planning Department.  

This Recombination Plat will allow the building’s construction without the issues of crossing property lines. 

 

 

 

 

 

*Approved at the October P&Z meeting.  

Budgetary Impact:  N/A. 

Recommendation:  Approve the Recombination Plat.  

 

71



72



 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract  
 

Meeting Date: November 13, 2017 
Presenter: Anthony Bowers, Finance Director 

 

Item Section:  Consent Agenda 

Item to be Considered 
Subject: Budget Amendment 2017-2018-04. 

Action Requested: Approve the Budget Amendment. 

Attachments: Budget Amendment 17-18-04. 

Prepared By: Anthony Bowers, Finance Director Date: 10/3/2017 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 
 TC        FD        TM  tlp – 11/8/2017  Final  tlp – 11/8/2017 

Supporting Documentation 
This is the fourth budget amendment for the 2017-2018 Fiscal Year. 

This amendment addresses three (3) items. The first item will reduce the amount of funds and debt issued for 
the construction of the Parks’ playground equipment.  As a result of reviewing our financing options, Staff 
determined that it was better to cover the portion of the capital purchases with Fund Balance.  The Recreation 
Fund will pay back the General Fund Balance over the course of five (5) years.  

The second item increases the revenues for the Recreation Fund as the Department was awarded a $35,000 
grant for the Fork Swamp Greenway Project. 

The final items address an appropriation that was not included in the originally adopted Budget and must be 
added in order to account for North Carolina sales taxes payable for electricity sales.  Most of this cost is being 
compensated by using debt to purchase the Electric line truck and using that original appropriation to offset the 
sales tax line item.  This will increase fund balance usage in the amount of $175,400 and increase the debt 
proceeds line item in the amount of $265,000. 

 

 

 

 

Budgetary Impact: The total budget amendment is $572,285. 

Recommendation:  Approve the Budget Amendment 

 

73



BUDGET ORDINANCE AMENDMENT 17-18-04

BE IT ORDAINED by the Governing Board of the Town of Winterville, that the following amendment 
be made to the annual budget ordinance for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2018:

 
SECTION 1. Revenues are to be changed as follows:

LINE ITEM DESCRIPTION Fund Increase Decrease
Contribution from Fund Balance 10 3831 General 96,885$                 
Grant Rev 15 3415 Recreation 35,000$                 
Debt Service Proceds 60 3811 Electric 265,000$               
Contribution from Fund Balance 60 3831 Electric 175,400

Total 572,285$               -$                       

SECTION 2. Appropriations are to be changed as follows:
  

LINE ITEM DESCRIPTION Department Fund Increase Decrease
Contribution to Recreation 1041950000 9110 Non- Departmental General 96,885$                 
Engineering 1560601000 4303 Recreation Recreation 35,000$                 
Electric Sales Tax 6071711000 4303 Electric Electric 440,400$               

572,285$               -$                       
Total

Adopted the 14th day of November 2017.

Mayor

Town Clerk 

74



 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract  
 

Meeting Date: November 13, 2017 
Presenter: Ben Williams, Assistant Town 
Manager  

 

Item Section:  New Business 

Item to be Considered 
Subject: SRF Loan Increase for New Regional Lift Station and Sewer Rehabilitation. 

Action Requested: Adoption of Resolution Accepting Loan Offer. 

Attachments: Resolution of Acceptance. 

Prepared By: Ben Williams, Assistant Town Manager Date: 11/7/2017 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 
 TC        FD        TM  tlp – 11/8/2017  Final  tlp – 11/8/2017 

Supporting Documentation 
In 2014, the Town applied for funding assistance for the construction of a new regional sanitary sewer lift station 
and collection system rehabilitation.  In January 2015, the NC Department of Environmental Quality (NCDEQ) 
Division of Water Infrastructure (DWI) reviewed the funding application and approved the Town of Winterville for 
loan assistance from the Clean Water State Revolving Fund (CWSRF).  Bids were received in Spring of 2017 
for the project.  Construction cost amounts received exceeded the previously approved loan amount of 
$2,127,020.  Additional funds were requested and approved by the funding agency.   

The revised loan amount for the project is $2,297,777, for a term of twenty (20) years with an interest rate of 
1.66%.  The total cost of the project is estimated to be $2,392,861.42. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Budgetary Impact:  Repayment of loan with annual installments over twenty (20) years upon project 
completion. 

Recommendation:  Adopt Resolution Accepting Loan Offer. 

 

75



RESOLUTION BY GOVERNING BODY OF APPLICANT 
WHEREAS, the North Carolina Clean Water Revolving Loan and Grant Act of 1987 has authorized the 

making of loans and grants to aid eligible units of government in financing the cost of 
construction of wastewater treatment works, wastewater collection systems, and water 
supply systems, water conservation projects, and    

WHEREAS, the North Carolina Department of Environment and Natural Resources has offered a State 
Revolving Loan in the amount of $2,297,777 for the construction of a new regional pump 
station and sewer collection system rehabilitation, and 

WHEREAS, the Town of Winterville (Applicant) intends to construct said project in accordance with 
the approved plans and specifications, 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF WINTERVILLE: 
That the Town of Winterville does hereby accept the State Revolving Loan offer of 
$2,297,777. 

That the Town of Winterville does hereby give assurance to the North Carolina 
Department of Environment and Natural Resources that all items specified in the loan 
offer, Section II Assurances will be adhered to. 

That the Terri L. Parker, Town Manager, and successors so titled, is hereby authorized and 
directed to furnish such information as the appropriate State agency may request in 
connection with such application or the project; to make the assurances as contained 
above; and to execute such other documents as may be required in connection with the 
application. 

That the Town of Winterville has substantially complied or will substantially comply with 
all Federal, State, and local laws, rules, regulations, and ordinances applicable to the 
project and to Federal and State grants and loans pertaining thereto. 

Adopted this the 13th day of November, 2017 at Winterville, North Carolina. 

 
 

(Signature of Chief Executive Officer) 
 

 
 (Title)  

76



 
 

CERTIFICATION BY RECORDING OFFICER 
 

The undersigned duly qualified and acting Clerk of the Town of Winterville does hereby certify:  That the 

above/attached resolution is a true and correct copy of the resolution authorizing the filing of an 

application with the State of North Carolina, as regularly adopted at a legally convened meeting of the 

Town Council duly held on the 13th day of November, 2017;  and, further, that such resolution has been 

fully recorded in the journal of proceedings and records in my office.  IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have 

hereunto set my hand this ________ day of November, 2017. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

(Signature of Recording Officer) 
 

(Title of Recording Officer) 

77



 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract  
 

Meeting Date: November 13, 2017 
Presenter: David Moore, Fire Chief and 
Anthony Bowers, Finance Director 

 

Item Section:  New Business 

Item to be Considered 
Subject: Interlocal Contract for Cooperative Purchasing of Fire Truck with HGACBuy. 

Action Requested: Approval of Interlocal Contract for Cooperative Purchasing. 

Attachments: Interlocal Contract, Bid Tabulation  

Prepared By: Terri L. Parker, Town Manager Date: 10/31/2017 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 
 TC        FD        TM  tlp – 11/8/2017  Final  tlp – 11/8/2017 

Supporting Documentation 
As directed by Council, Staff has worked to develop a specification for the new fire engine provided for in the 
current budget.   

The Town received the competitive bids through the H-GACBuy Cooperative Purchasing Program in order to 
gain the most cost competitive bids.  Staff requests that Council to provide the Town Manager the authority to 
sign the Interlocal Contract to participate in the Program and approve the purchase in accordance with Section 
10 of the Town of Winterville Purchasing Policy.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

Budgetary Impact: $513,171 is the purchase price for said truck (minus equipment). $500,000 was 
approved in the FY 2017-2018 Annual Budget. The $13,171 overage will be absorbed in the current year 
budget. 

Recommendation:  Staff recommends that Council authorize the Town Manager to sign the Interlocal 
Contract to participate and purchase the fire engine. 

 

78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87

terri.parker
Highlight



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



Houston-Galveston Area Council (H-GAC)

Competive Bid Package

Bid Date: August 13, 2015

Contract Date and Term: December 1, 2015-November 30, 2017

 

 

#1

#2

#3

E-One Typhoon, Urban Interface Pumper, 4-Door Custom Full-Tilt Welded 

Aluminum Cab, Pumper, Welded Extruded Aluminum Body, Single Axle, 125 GPM 

Pump, Side Mount Pump Module

Bid Tabulation Fire Service Apparatus

$392,477.00

Rosenbauer  Commander, 4-Door Full-Tilt, Aluminum Pumper, Extruded aluminum, 

Single Axle, 1250 GPM, Side-Mount Pump $396,400.00

Pierce Dash CF,  4-Door Full-Tilt, Aluminum Cab, Single Axle, 1250 GPM, PUC Body 

Pumper $487,569.00

 

103

terri.parker
Highlight

terri.parker
Highlight



104


	ADPE82F.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Davis Property (Parcel #24023, #25886, and #25940) Rezoning.
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM  tlp – 11/6/2017
	 Final  tlp – 11/6/2017
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP2688.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Summer Winds (Parcel #73274) Rezoning.
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM  tlp – 11/6/2017
	 Final  tlp – 11/6/2017
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP6FF8.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Permitted & Conditional Use Workshop Changes to Agricultural-Residential (A-R) District
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADPCD4C.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Annexation - Ange Plaza Lot 2. 
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM  tlp – 11/6/2017
	 Final  tlp – 11/62017
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP3D03.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Annexation of Ange Plaza Lot 23 & 26. 
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM  tlp – 11/6/2017
	 Final  tlp – 11/6/2017
	Supporting Documentation


	ADPFD95.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Resolution Approving the Financing (Recreation Truck, Recreation Van, and Electric Line Truck) with First Citizens Bank and Trust (FCB).
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC      
	 FD      

	 TM  tlp - 11/7/2017
	 Final  tlp – 11/7/2017
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP7556.tmp
	Sheet1

	ADPBDCC.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Winterville Machine Works Recombination.
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADPA58.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Budget Amendment 2017-2018-04
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC 
	 FD      

	 TM  
	 Final  
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP6CA5.tmp
	Amendment

	ADPB25D.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Approval of resolution and purchase 
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC JJS-12/5/13
	 FD      

	 TM  tlp – 12/4/13
	 Final  tlp – 12/4/13
	Supporting Documentation


	ADPA140.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Permitted & Conditional Use Workshop Changes to Agricultural-Residential (A-R) District.
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM  tlp – 11/8/2017
	 Final  tlp – 11/8/2017
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP60CB.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Winterville Machine Works Recombination Plat.
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM  tlp – 11/8/2017
	 Final  tlp – 11/8/2017
	Supporting Documentation


	ADPCD83.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Budget Amendment 2017-2018-04.
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC      
	 FD      

	 TM  tlp – 11/8/2017
	 Final  tlp – 11/8/2017
	Supporting Documentation


	ADPA6B5.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: SRF Loan Increase for New Regional Lift Station and Sewer Rehabilitation.
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC      
	 FD      

	 TM  tlp – 11/8/2017
	 Final  tlp – 11/8/2017
	Supporting Documentation


	ADPFDDB.tmp
	UCERTIFICATION BY RECORDING OFFICER

	ADP6640.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Interlocal Contract for Cooperative Purchasing of Fire Truck with HGACBuy.
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC      
	 FD      

	 TM  tlp – 11/8/2017
	 Final  tlp – 11/8/2017
	Supporting Documentation


	ADPEFFC.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Interlocal Contract for Cooperative Purchasing of Fire Truck with HGACBuy.
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC      
	 FD      

	 TM  tlp – 11/8/2017
	 Final  tlp – 11/8/2017
	Supporting Documentation





